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Facility No. 479 is associated with the build up of facilities at the Naval
Base in the early 1940s. It is one of a group of permanent storehouses
that were vital to the supply functions at Pearl Harbor during World War II.
This building is associated with the development of additional storage
facilities on fill land at Kuahua Peninsula, and with the war efforts to
supply the base, other installations in the district, and the advance lines.
This structure remains an integral part of the early 1940s group of Naval
Station Supply Depot buildings. Facility No. 479 is a concrete storehouse
of a distinctive type, period, and method of construction. It is a
contributing element to the Pearl Harbor National Historic Landmark.

Facility No. 479 is located on the portion of Kuahua Peninsula which was
created by fill land in the early 1940s. Two other concrete storehouses of
similar design are nearby (Facility Nos. 474 and 475). Like them, this
building is surrounded by pavement on all four sides. Bauernschmidt
Plaza, to the south across Quincy Avenue, is the only landscaped area in
the vicinity.

Facility No. 479 is a four-story, rectangular-plan, reinforced-concrete
structure. This is an example of an International Style building, with
smooth wall surfaces, lack of ornament, and flat roof. Its structural grid is
20'-0" square, and the building is six bays wide by twelve bays long. The
overall footprint measures 120'-0" x 240'-0". The building height to the
top of the parapet is 54'-0", with elevator towers extending about 16
above the roof. The height of the first floor is 14'-9", while the other three
floors are each 11'-0" tall.

The columns and perimeter foundation walls of Facility No. 479 rest on
hexagonal and square footings supported by seven to ten piles,
depending on the bearing strength of each particular part of the fill land.
Drawings show the perimeter foundation walls on the north and south
sides (under the walls and under the loading platforms) are 12"-thick
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reinforced concrete, while the foundation wall under the west end is 10"
thick and under the east-end wall is 8" thick. Abutting the east wall are
footings which project a few feet above ground; these are for the first line
of columns of a planned extension (never built). The 6"-inch thick
reinforced concrete slab floor of the first level, as well as the loading
docks, are on a base of compacted fill raised approximately 3' above
grade. The other floors are 9"-thick reinforced concrete.

The reinforced-concrete beams above the windows are 12" thick. The
walls below the windows are typically 8"-thick reinforced concrete, except
at the east end. Because an extension of the building was planned at this
end, the wall sections between the reinforced-concrete structural grid are
built of “hollow concrete tile” as labeled on the drawings. These concrete
masonry units are painted.

The north and south sides of the building have 10'-0"-wide loading
platforms running along their entire length. There are sloping ramps at
each end of the north platform and at the east end of the south platform.
The west end of the south loading dock ends in a stair, but an additional
ramp has also been constructed alongside to provide handicap access to
this end of the platform level. There are cantilevered concrete canopies
covering the loading platforms and ramps. Drawings show that these
canopies taper from a thickness of 10" at the walls to a 3" thickness near
the end. At the end, is a 4" high lip that is about 5" wide. Each canopy
has three drains that channel water into 4"-diameter pipes, each running
inside a pilaster. On each side one drain is located at the mid-point of the
canopy and the other two are situated 40'-0" from each end. The
underside of the canopies at these points have thicker sections -to
accommodate the drain pipes. The metal lighting fixtures and the fire
protection fire sprinkler piping under the canopies appear to be original.

One freight elevator door and two large roll-up steel doors open onto
each platform. The south loading platform has three additional standard-
size hinged doors, and the north platform has two such doors. The
elevator openings measure 8'-8" wide by 9'-0" high, with vertically
bi-parting doors. These have roll-up doors on the exteriors for added
security. The largest door openings measure 12'-0" square and have
interior-mounted roll-up doors; on the exterior of several there is a sliding
gate, constructed of metal mesh on a wood frame. On the south side one
original metal door to a toilet room remains; it has two lights over a tall
bottom panel. Four of the standard-size (approximately 3' x 7') doors are
not original. The original door to the office area in the southwest corner
was replaced by modern double bi-folding glass doors in aluminum
frames. An exit door in each stairway bay was added to comply with
modern codes. A louvered metal door was added to the transformer
room, opening to the north platform. After the door was installed, the east
end of the north platform was changed to become a ramp; so the
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transformer door now opens above a sloping ramp, rather than onto a
platform. The east and west ends of the building have no doors.

The majority of windows appear to be original to the building, but the first-
story ones are the most altered. Originally, the first level typically had
sections of steel-frame multi-light windows extending over two to four
bays, except at the office and toilet rooms which had window groupings
one-bay wide or less. Most of the lights in the window groupings are
fixed, typically with only one pivoting six-light or eight-light section in each
bay, but there are two or more such sections in the toilet room bays. The
original office windows had hopper and awning sections, instead of
pivoting. There is also variation in the heights of the first-floor windows
(5'-2", or 6'-10 3/8", or 8'-6 3/4"). Some of the original windows near the
middle of the south side have security bars consisting of metal rods and
rectangular bars. Since construction, the original first-floor window
grouping on the eastern third of the south side was replaced with a solid
wall, pierced only by three small rectangular louvered vents. Most of the
original office windows in the southwest corner of the building's first level
have been replaced by jalousies or large sheets of plate glass, but some
windows with hopper sections remain. Some windows were replaced
with new ones that match the original design, except have thicker
muntins.

The windows on the second through fourth stories are very regular in
pattern. Around three sides of the building (north, west, and south) these
floors have almost continuous bands of windows, measuring 3'-5 5/8" tall,
except where interrupted by the elevator towers and by the pillars at the
western corners. Even these interruptions have recessed planes
corresponding to the window band on each floor. There are no
interruptions at the interior perimeter pillars, which have slight recesses
on their exterior faces to accommodate the window bands. All the lights
in these window bands are fixed except for one pivoting six-light or eight-
light section in each bay.

The east-end windows have a different pattern. The windows on the east
end are mostly as originally built, except for one bay on the first floor's
southeast corner which has been infilled. Each bay on the east end has
three ganged steel-sash windows. Each window has a pivoting section,
but the central window's section is smaller. For instance, the outer
windows in each first-floor bay have six-light pivoting sash, while the
center window's movable sash is only four lights. The first-floor window
height on the east end is 6'-10 3/8". Although the second- to fourth-floor
windows are only 5'-2" in height, they have larger pivoting sections. The
outer windows in each triplet have nine-light pivoting sections, while the
central window in each bay has only a six-light pivoting section.

The roof is flat with an encircling parapet approximately 3' high.
Floodlights are mounted near the corners of the parapet. The roof is
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covered with a white membrane material, laid over insulation with slight
pitches to direct water to nine roof drains. Drawings show drain pipes run
down the center of some columns and then to pipes under the first floor,
with outlets at the face of the loading platforms. One stairwell and two
elevator towers are located on the roof of this building. The stairwell has
a modern, eight-light, metal-sash window, consisting of two fixed lights
above and below an awning section of four central lights. The metal door
of the stairwell has four lights above a lower panel. There is a machine
room on top of each elevator tower; these are slightly larger in footprint
than the elevator shafts, and raised 7'-0" above the roof level. Each
machine room is reached by a steep steel stair with pipe handrail. The
door to the machine room on the south side is the same as the one to the
stairwell, but the machine room on the north side has a modern flush
metal door. Metal awnings cover the openings in the machine rooms and
the ones under them that vent the elevator shafts. These openings have
metal louvers.

The interior of the building is mainly open storage space interrupted only
by the structural columns. The first floor has several enclosed spaces,
including locker rooms, toilet rooms, transformer room, and vault. The
original administrative office space in the southwest corner has been
changed over the years; recently it has been used as a retail shop and
now is a mail center. Except for the elevators and stairways, the
enclosures on the upper floors were originally limited to one small toilet
room per story. The drawings show that, except for the concrete walls of
the elevator shafts and stairwells, the enclosure walls are typically built of
6" or 8" concrete masonry units. Partitions of wire mesh on wood or
metal frames have also been installed on each floor. Columns are
cylindrical and their diameters are widest on the first floor (2'-0") and
narrowest on the top floor (1'-4"). Each free-standing column has a
conical flared capital (4'-6" diameter at the top) under a 7'-0" square drop
panel. [A drop panel is the thickened portion on the underside of a
concrete slab which surrounds a column capital.] Where the elevator
shaft corners intersect the structural grid the columns and capitals have
faceted, instead of conical, shapes. Around the building's perimeter,
there are engaged pillars with chamfered corners; each has a wedge-
shaped bracket projecting from its inner face, rather than a capital. At the
exterior plane most pillars (except not those on the east end) have a
recess to allow continuous window bands. The concrete floors, ceilings,
walls and columns are typically painted, but otherwise not finished on the
upper two levels. The second-floor has been entirely remodeled for office
use, with all modern interior finishes. Also, the first-floor mail center has
some resilient tile and some ceramic tile flooring, and the first three levels
of the south-side stairwell have sheet vinyl flooring. There are removable
floor sections in the upper floors; each opening measures 10'-0" square,
but the metal-edged concrete slabs are in two sections, for ease of
removal. Fluorescent lighting fixtures are not original but the fire
protection piping was installed in the building at the time of construction.
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See the report on warehouses (HABS No. HI-388) for an overview history
of storehouses in Pearl Harbor. See also the reports on the nearby
similar buildings, Facility No. 474 (HABS No. HI-519) and Facility No. 475
(HABS No. HI-433). There are also reports on other buildings used to
store dry provisions, although these are wood-framed storehouses:
Facility Nos. 146, 147, and 148 (HABS No. HI-414) and Facility Nos. 404,
405, and 406 (HABS No. HI-430).

During the initial build-up period and first year or two of WWII, most
buildings were permanent-type construction. This reinforced-concrete
building, along with Facility Nos. 474, 475, and a cold storage building
(demolished Facility No. 476), were part of the plan to develop new areas
of Pearl Harbor for storehouses. Most of the construction work in this
early 1940s period at Pearl Harbor and at other Pacific installations was
done by a consortium of construction firms called Contractors Pacific
Naval Air Bases (CPNAB). Kuahua Island became Kuahua Peninsula,
using spoils from dredging operations in Pearl Harbor, and rock from the
Red Hill tank excavations, to create more level land on the base for large
warehouses.

The Fleet Supply Depot, Pearl Harbor Navy Yard, occupies
Kuahua Island and reclaimed areas along the island’s
shorelines — including a filled fish pond about six hundred
feet wide and sixteen feet deep, extending north to the
mouth of Halawa River. As a result of dredging, the
original island area was increased from 47 to 116 acres, of
which the supply depot occupies 51.74 acres (Contractors,
Pacific Naval Air Bases n.d.: A-716).

Rock from Red Hill was also used as aggregate in the concrete for this
storehouse (Center Relay 1996:7). The location plan on an August 1941
drawing for this building (included with this report) and other details in the
drawings show that expansion of this provisions storehouse to twice its
size was planned, although never built. The east end had a special
footing detail, with a label “concrete pedistal [sic] for future building
column,” on the drawing (no. 167599) showing such an element at the
base of the east wall. The columns dowels were noted to be enclosed in
concrete brick piers and topped with concrete caps. The drawings for this
storehouse were prepared by the Fourteenth Naval District's Public
Works Office (PWO) in August 1941. The building was completed in
September 1942 (Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases n.d.: A-709). For
construction of the multi-story reinforced-concrete buildings CPNAB used
column forms that were “cylindrical steel sections, quickly erected and
wedged-locked into position” (Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases n.d.:
A-1041).
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Historic photos show that soon after this building was completed it was
painted in a camouflage pattern, as were numerous structures at Pearl
Harbor, including the nearby concrete storehouses, Facility Nos. 474 and
475. This was done in anticipation of another attack. A re-roofing
drawing from 1952 shows that a gun position had also been built on top of
Facility No. 479 in anticipation of a subsequent attack.

During World War Il dry provisions were stored in this storehouse. The
word “provisions” in this context means food supplies, and “dry” indicates
the type of dehydrated and canned food that was typical of shipboard
fare, except when a refrigerated ship was able to deliver fresh food items
(Mitchell 2002). The items stored here were issued to forces afloat, to
ships taking supplies to the advance bases, and to organizations within
the 14™ Naval District. “Supplying the beans ... provided a special and
formidable problem to the Outlying Bases Division;” a problem that was

. solved by setting up a “special division for automatic food replenishment
of Outlying Islands” (Historical Section, Fourteenth Naval District [1945]:
443 & 446]. Demands for all goods, including dry provisions, was rapidly
increasing in the early years of the war, and it was difficult to make
accurate predictions of future needs. This building was the only multi-
level, concrete storehouse designated for dry provisions at Pearl Harbor,
although two decks of Facility No. 475 were used for provision storage at
some time during WWII. The offices of the Provisions Group moved to
Facility No. 479 in June 1943 and required enlargement three times
during WWII (Naval Supply Depot 1945: [4]). Other WWII dry provisions
storehouses at Pearl Harbor included Facility Nos. 145 through 148 at
Merry Point; and three of those four temporary storehouses remain. In
the last few years of WWII the majority of dry provisions were received at
the Manana Storage Area and Pearl City Annex; from the warehouses in
these outlying areas the issue buildings at Pearl Harbor (Facility Nos.
404, 405, 406, and 489 in the Kuahua area) were replenished (Naval
Supply Depot 1945: [17-19]). The growth in the amount of dry provisions
issued during WWIl is clear by comparing the December 1941 volume of
5,000,000 pounds to the heaviest wartime month, February 1945, when
40,370,000 pounds were issued (Naval Supply Depot 1945: [9]). Some
other sections of the NSD used the storage and office spaces in this
building. The Clothing Division utilized the second deck of Facility No.
479 until it moved to Facility No. 491 in June 1944 (Naval Supply Depot
1945). Ship's Store stock occupied 52,000 s.f. (about two full stories) of
Facility No. 479, as well as several other buildings. At least two of the
items in the Ship's Store Division required special handing — beer and
postage stamps, due to the "pilferable nature of the material involved"
(Naval Supply Depot 1945).

It is clear from the floor plans that there was a hierarchy of storehouse
workers during World War |ll. The officers’ toilet and locker rooms are
closest to and open from the administration offices on the first floor.
Nearby are the women’s and men'’s toilet rooms, but these open from the
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warehouse spaces on the first floor. [The men have a locker room and the
women have a rest room as the entry space to their respective toilet
rooms.] The largest toilet room is labeled “Help’s Toilet” and the door
opens directly onto the south platform. An adjacent large locker room is
accessed through that toilet room. On each of the upper floors of the
storehouse, there is only one small toilet room, labeled “Help’s Toilet.”

Use of the building as a provisions storehouse continued until the 1950s.
By 1963 this facility was listed as a general warehouse, with a secondary
use as an administration building (U.S. Navy, Bureau of Yards and Docks
1963: 3705).

Not all the changes to the building were recorded in the drawings on file
at Pearl Harbor. For instance, the historic photos from the early 1940s
show that the east ends of the platforms originally did not ramp down to
grade, since expansion of the building on that end was planned.
Sometime after 1945, those platform ends were rebuilt with ramps.
Comparing recent photos to some from 1983 show that the first-floor
windows at the southeast corner were removed after 1983. The windows
and door in the southwest corner of the building were altered at least
twice, as evidenced by comparing photos from 1942, 1983, and 2000.
Sometime before 1983 the office in the southwest corner was converted
to a Servmart. After 1998 some or all of the building was remodeled into
the Pearl Harbor Mail Center, with the entrance in that corner, but no
drawings were located.

A 1951 drawing (no. 516546) shows the building was re-roofed at that
time, and the gun position on the west end of the roof was removed. The
current roofing on the building looks recent, but no other re-roofing
drawings were found in the Plan Files of the Naval Facilities Engineering
Command, Pacific. A 1964 drawing (no. 1038262) shows some
renovation work to the exterior of the structure was planned to repair
spalling and cracks. In 1983 there were two minor projects involving fire
alarms and emergency lighting that involved work on this building and
others. A 1985 project entailing major electrical improvements also
involved this facility, as well as others. In 1986 elevators in Facility No.
479 and other buildings were replaced.

The drawings for this building are on microfilm at the Plan Files of the
Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Pacific. The 1941 drawings are
filed under numbers 1386 through 1389, 167592 through 167599, 174935
through 174941, and 179987, plus some miscellaneous drawings of test
borings and test piles. There are several other drawings of the building,
typically involving minor renovations or repairs, under numbers 516546,
672105, 672106, 1038262, and drawings in sets starting with numbers
7048456, 7058639, and 7066285 that include work on other buildings.
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Two 1942 photos of the building are located at the National Archives I,
Still Photo Section, RG 71 CB, Box 101, in College Park, Maryland.
Three 1940s photos showing the building were found in the archives of
Naval Facilities Engineering Command, at Port Hueneme, California.
Two of those photos, dating from 1945, were in the Kidder-Smith Photo
Collection (nos. N191-2 and N197-7) and a 1944 photo was in Box Tl
8/27. Four 1983 photos of the buildings are in the files of the State
Historic Preservation Division, in Kapolei, Hawaii.

Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases
n.d.  Technical Report and Project History, Contracts NOy-3550
and NOy-4173, on microfiche at library of Naval Facilities
Engineering Command, Pacific.

Center Relay
1296 “The Most Spectacular Engineering Job in Hawaii’s History,”
Special Edition, August 15, 1996, of Fleet and Industrial
Supply Center newsletter.

Historical Section, Fourteenth Naval District
[1945] U.S. Naval Administration in World War I, Administrative
History of the Fourteenth Naval District and the Hawaiian Sea
Frontier, on microfiche purchased from the Naval History
Center Library in the Washington Navy Yard.

Mitchell, Patricia B.
2002 “WWIlI Navy Food Remembered,” interview of P.L.
Anderson, Jr, on website www.foodhistory.com/foodnotes/
leftovers/ww2/usn/plal/, accessed February 24, 2006.

Naval Supply Depot
1945  World War Il Administrative History of the Naval Supply
Depot, Vol. lll / Pearl Harbor, T.H. Provisions Group section
of unpaginated typescript in Significant Supply Department
Records, 1942-1945, Box 2; Records of the Supply Officer,
Fourteenth Naval District, RG 181; National Archives and
Records Administration, San Bruno, California.

U.S. Navy
[1945] World War Il Administrative History of the Supply Activities of
the Fourteenth Naval District. Typescript at the National
Archives and Records Administration, San Bruno, RG 181/
14ND/ Staff Hdqts/ District Supply Officer/ Box 2/ Folder
“Vol. 1 — Supply in the 14" Naval District.”
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U.S. Navy, Bureau of Yards and Docks
1963 Detailed Inventory of Naval Shore Facilities: Real Property
Data (NAVDOCKS P-164), Vol. IV. In Archives of Naval
Facilities Engineering Command: Port Hueneme, California.

Project Information: Replacement of windows in this building, and in two other similar ones

Prepared by:

nearby (Facility Nos. 474 and 475), has been proposed by the Navy, to
meet anti-terrorism/force protection (AT/FP) requirements. In accordance
with 36 CFR Part 800, implementing regulations of Section 106, National
Historic Preservation Act, Commander Navy Region (COMNAVREG)
Hawaii has consulted with the Hawaii State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO) and other consulting parties. This photo documentation and
recordation is a partial fulfillment of the mitigations stipulated in the
Memorandum of Agreement among COMNAVREG Hawaii and SHPO.
This report was prepared under a Historic Preservation Services contract
(N62742-97-D-3502) awarded to AMEC Earth and Environmental, the
prime contractor, by the U.S. Navy, Naval Facilities Engineering
Command, Pacific. The contract was funded through the Cultural
Resources Program of COMNAVREG Hawaii. The photographic
documentation was undertaken by David Franzen, of Franzen
Photography. Location maps were made by Nestor Beltran of NAB
Graphics. Between 1999 and 2001, the field work and the draft of this
report were done by Dot Dye, AMEC Earth & Environmental, Inc. The
report was rewritten in 2006 by Mason Architects, Inc.

Mason Architects, Inc. AMEC Earth and Environmental, Inc.
119 Merchant St., Suite 501 3375 Koapaka St., Suite F-251
Honolulu, HI 96813 Honolulu, HI 96818

Date of Final Report: April 2006
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Portion of Drawing No. 167592, dated August 30, 1941 (Location plan)

Note that a portion of Kuahua Island's original shoreline is shown, with planned new buildings
and wharfs drawn with cross-hatching or dashed lines.
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Portion of Drawing No. 167592, dated August 30, 1941 (End Elevations)
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Portion of Drawing No. 167593, dated August 30, 1941 (Side Elevations)

NR e bear M ek f

THNGRTH S8 ELE A TICON




U.S. NAVAL BASE, PEARL HARBOR, DRY PROVISIONS STOREHOUSE
(U.S. Naval Base, Pearl Harbor, Fleet and Industrial Supply Center)
(U.S. Naval Base, Pearl Harbor, General Warehouse)

(Facility No. 479)

HABS No. HI-434 (Page 15)

Portion of Drawing No. 167594, dated August 30, 1941 (First-floor plan)
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Portion of Drawing No. 167595, dated August 30, 1941 (Second-floor plan, 3rd & 4th similar)
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Fleet and Industrial Supply Center)
Pearl Harbor, General Warehouse)

, Pearl Harbor

(U.S. Naval Base

U.S. NAVAL BASE, PEARL HARBOR, DRY PROVISIONS STOREHOUSE
(U.S. Naval Base )

1941 (Cross-Section)

dated August 30

Portion of Drawing No. 167597,
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U.S. NAVAL BASE, PEARL HARBOR, DRY PROVISIONS STOREHOUSE
(U.S. Naval Base, Pearl Harbor, Fleet and Industrial Supply Center)
(U.S. Naval Base, Pearl Harbor, General Warehouse)

(Facility No. 479)
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View of storehouse with camouflage painting, dated 10 December 1942
(Source: National Archives I, in RG71CB, Box 103, Y&D Neg. #14933)
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